
  

 
 

 

NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL 

COMMISSIONING AND PROCUREMENT SUB-COMMITTEE 

 
Date: Tuesday, 14 January 2020 
 
Time:  10.00 am 
 
Place: LH 0.06 - Loxley House, Station Street, Nottingham, NG2 3NG 
 
 
Councillors are requested to attend the above meeting to transact the following 
business 
 

 
Corporate Director for Strategy and Resources 
 
Governance Officer: Phil Wye   Direct Dial: 0115 8764637 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 Pages 

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 

3  MINUTES  
Minutes of the meeting held on 10 September 2019, for confirmation 
 

3 - 10 

4  VOLUNTARY AND COMMUNITY SECTOR UPDATE  
 

Verbal 
Report 

5  FUNDING FOR NOTTINGHAM SCHOOLS TRUST  
Report of the Portfolio Holder for Early Years, Education and 
Employment  
 

11 - 16 

6  BUILDING SERVICES, MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL TEAM 
PROCUREMENT REQUIREMENTS – 2020-24  
Report of the Portfolio Holder for Energy, Environment and Democratic 
Services 
 

17 - 22 

7  MENTAL HEALTH ACCOMMODATION AND SUPPORT PATHWAYS  
Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Care and Local Transport 
 

23 - 46 

8  PROCUREMENT OF UTILITIES CONTRACT 2020 TO 2024  
Report of the Portfolio Holder for Energy, Environment and Democratic 
Services 

47 - 50 

Public Document Pack



 
9  EXEMPTION OF THE PUBLIC  

To consider excluding the public from the meeting during consideration of 
the remaining item(s) in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the basis that, having regard to all the 
circumstances, the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs 
in the public interest in disclosing the information. 
 

 

10  EXEMPT APPENDIX - PROCUREMENT OF UTILITIES CONTRACT 
2020-2024  
 

51 - 58 

ALL ITEMS LISTED ‘UNDER EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC’ WILL BE HEARD IN 
PRIVATE. THEY HAVE BEEN INCLUDED ON THE AGENDA AS NO 
REPRESENTATIONS AGAINST HEARING THE ITEMS IN PRIVATE WERE RECEIVED 

 

IF YOU NEED ANY ADVICE ON DECLARING AN INTEREST IN ANY ITEM ON THE 
AGENDA, PLEASE CONTACT THE GOVERNANCE OFFICER SHOWN ABOVE, IF 
POSSIBLE BEFORE THE DAY OF THE MEETING  
 

CITIZENS ATTENDING MEETINGS ARE ASKED TO ARRIVE AT LEAST 15 MINUTES 
BEFORE THE START OF THE MEETING TO BE ISSUED WITH VISITOR BADGES 

 

CITIZENS ARE ADVISED THAT THIS MEETING MAY BE RECORDED BY MEMBERS 
OF THE PUBLIC. ANY RECORDING OR REPORTING ON THIS MEETING SHOULD 
TAKE PLACE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COUNCIL’S POLICY ON RECORDING AND 
REPORTING ON PUBLIC MEETINGS, WHICH IS AVAILABLE AT 
WWW.NOTTINGHAMCITY.GOV.UK. INDIVIDUALS INTENDING TO RECORD THE 
MEETING ARE ASKED TO NOTIFY THE GOVERNANCE OFFICER SHOWN ABOVE IN 
ADVANCE. 

 

http://www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/


1 

NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  
 
COMMISSIONING AND PROCUREMENT SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of the meeting held at LH 0.06 - Loxley House, Station Street, 
Nottingham, NG2 3NG on 10 September 2019 from 9.01 am - 9.47 am 
 
Membership  
Present Absent 
Councillor Sam Webster (Chair) 
Councillor Eunice Campbell-Clark 
Councillor Sally Longford 
Councillor Adele Williams 

Councillor Cheryl Barnard (Vice 
Chair) 
 

 
Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:  
Jacquie Blake - Commercial Operations Manager, Catering 
Paul Burrows - Change Projects and Strategy Manager 
Elisa Flintoff - Contracts Performance Officer 
Liz Hiskens - Service Manager, Highways 
Steve Oakley - Head of Contracting and Procurement 
Simon Salmon - Head of IT 
Syd Shaw - Technical Officer 
Zena West - Governance Officer 
Councillor Linda 
Woodings 

- Portfolio Holder for Housing, Planning and Heritage 

 
Call-in 
Unless stated otherwise, all decisions are subject to call-in. The last date for call-in is 
20 September 2019. Decisions cannot be implemented until the working day after 
this date. 
 
19  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
None. 
 
20  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
None. 
 
21  MINUTES 

 
The Board confirmed the minutes of the meeting held on 9 July 2019 as a correct 
record and they were signed by the Chair. 
 
22  VOLUNTARY AND COMMUNITY SECTOR UPDATE 

 
This item was withdrawn as it was added to the agenda in error. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Commissioning and Procurement Sub-Committee - 10.09.19 

2 

 
23  FRESH FRUIT AND VEGETABLE SUPPLY CONTRACT - KEY DECISION 

 
Jacquie Blake, Commercial Operations Manager, presented a report to the Sub 
Committee regarding a two to four year tender for a new fresh fruit and vegetable 
supply contract. Following questions from Councillors, it was confirmed that all food is 
sourced locally where possible, most items within 50 miles of Nottingham. Councillors 
noted that this was positive, and would contribute to the Council’s aim of reducing 
carbon emissions and becoming carbon neutral. 
 
RESOLVED to: 
 
(1) approve the undertaking of a tender, using a public sector framework, to 

procure a contract for the supply of fresh fruit and vegetables. The 
contract will be for a 2-year period with the option to extend for a further 
1+1 years; 

 
(2) delegate authority to the Corporate Director for Commercial and 

Operations to award the contract, following the tender process. 
 
Reasons for decision 
 

 The current contract for the supply of fresh fruit and vegetables expires on 31 
December 2019. A new contract needs to be in place and therefore a 
competitive tender process will ensure that there will be both quality of product 
and value for money for the education and commercial sites. 
 

 This is a contract for supplies and is subject to the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015, which requires the City Council to undertake a competitive 
tender process to award the contract. 
 

 The expenditure will be covered by the charges for school meals that is either 
through paid meals or the free school meal budget of schools and academies, 
or income from commercial sites. 

 
Other options considered 
 
Do nothing. This option has been rejected as Nottingham Catering requires a supplier 
to provide fruit and vegetables to schools and commercial sites to ensure that 
services can be provided to citizens and ensure that the business continues to 
provide a net return to the council. 
 
24  PROCUREMENT OF A NEW WORKWEAR CORPORATE CONTRACT - 

KEY DECISION 
 

Steve Oakley (Head of Contracting and Procurement) and Elisa Flintoff (Contracts 
Performance Officer) presented a report on the Work wear Corporate Contract, 
requesting permission to establish a framework to supply PPE (personal protective 
equipment) and work wear. Other organisations may also use the framework, but 
approval is only sought for cost incurred by Nottingham City Council. Whilst sourcing 

Page 4



Commissioning and Procurement Sub-Committee - 10.09.19 

3 

work wear locally would be positive in many respects, it would not be possible to 
achieve the same cost savings. 
 
RESOLVED to: 
 
(1) establish a 4 year framework for the supply of PPE, Tools and Work wear 

for NCC and a number of named partner organisations; 
 
(2) approve a maximum spend of £475,000 per annum over 4 years 

(£1,900,000 in total). 
 
Reasons for decision 
 

 The establishment of a framework presents Nottingham City Council with the 
ideal opportunity to centralise the service, implement robust contract 
management and achieve a more efficient and effective service. The services 
will not be an exact replication of previous practices.  
 

 Being able to procure and establish a compliant framework means that there 
will be a considerable opportunity for savings. 
 

Other options considered 
 
Do nothing. This was rejected as this risk the creation of informal arrangements 
across departments that would lead to inefficiencies and detrimental financial 
implications. 
 
25  VOICE AND DATA NETWORKS CONTRACT RENEWAL - KEY DECISION 

 
Paul Burrows (Change Projects and Strategy Manager) and Simon Salmon (Head of 
IT) presented a report on the Voice and Data Networks Contract Renewal. The Sub 
Committee were initially concerned that every avenue for cost saving had been 
explored, given the high potential value of the contract. They were reassured that the 
service is still required (as there is an irreducible level of demand for voice services), 
and that the amount for approval is typically a ceiling figure, with a good history of 
yielding savings on this budget, and aggressive control of expenditure. 
 
Nottingham City Council buys network services from commercial suppliers, and they 
provide both telephone services and the data network to allow people to access 
systems and software. The service is usually bought every 5 years, on a 3+2 basis to 
account for developing technologies. As there is the potential to move to new 
supplier, it is prudent to go out to tender as early as possible to manage any potential 
transition to a new supplier. There is a clause within the contract to allow for a   
change in usage (i.e. from new buildings/sites or from losing building/sites which 
require a voice and data network). 
 
RESOLVED to: 
 
(1) delegate authority to the Head of Service (IT) to enter into contracts up to 

the value of £8,000,000 using approved procurement methods for voice 
and data network contracts for a period of up to 5 years; 

Page 5



Commissioning and Procurement Sub-Committee - 10.09.19 

4 

 
(2) approve allocation of funding from the IT Efficiency Fund for the five 

year period 2020/21 to 2024/25 to purchase voice and data network 
services. 

 
Reasons for decision 
 

 The current voice and data network contracts that enable Nottingham City 
Council to provide services will expire on 30 October.2020. The Council’s 
Financial Regulations require that contracted services are subject to 
competitive tender to ensure that value for money is achieved. 
 

 Because of the size of the contracts and the complexity of the services to be 
purchased a significant lead time should be allowed should the supplier of 
these services be changed through the competitive tendering exercise. This is 
the reason that approval for this work is being sought so far in advance of the 
current contracts’ expiry dates. 
 

 Use of the CCS framework allows the Council to access pre-assessed 
providers of services which helps ensure the quality, including security 
capability, of bidders.  

 
26  REPLACEMENT OF COMMUNICATIONS INFRASTRUCTURE 

EQUIPMENT - KEY DECISION 
 

Paul Burrows (Change Projects and Strategy Manager) and Simon Salmon (Head of 
IT) presented a report on the Replacement of communications infrastructure 
equipment. The equipment in question is hardware used to control how messages 
are sent round the network, called switches. Nottingham City Council’s current 
switches were installed 7 years ago and have come to the end of their supported life 
from the supplier. The Council has an obligation to Central Government to maintain a 
minimum security level, which replaces the switches will ensure. The official lifespan 
is 5 years, but switches are used as long as possible in order to obtain better value 
for money. 
 
RESOLVED to: 
 
(1) delegate authority to the Head of Service (IT) to enter into contracts up to 

the value of £1,600,000 using approved procurement methods for 
replacement of communications infrastructure equipment, associated 
products and services; 

 
(2) approve allocation of funding from the IT Efficiency Fund for the funding 

of replacement of communications infrastructure including addition to 
maintenance and support contracts. 

 
Reasons for decision 
 

 The current core network switches used by Nottingham City Council in its data 
centres and for communication with remote sites are now ‘end of life’. They will 

Page 6



Commissioning and Procurement Sub-Committee - 10.09.19 

5 

not receive manufacturers’ support and security vulnerabilities within the 
devices will cease to become patched. 

 

 The devices are responsible for providing connectivity of both voice and data 
services across the converged network extending to Council sites and partner 
agencies. The reliable operation of switches is critical to the delivery of Council 
services. The main data centre switches control the management of messages 
within the Council’s data centres, passing messages between processors, 
storage devices, etc. 
 

Other options considered 
 

 It is not feasible for the Council to operate without switches to enable the 
operation of the data network and so this is not recommended. 

 

 The existing switches could continue to be used and not replaced. This is a 
feasible option but is not recommended because: the existing switches will 
have insufficient capacity for the increased traffic they will have to bear with 
changes in working; the switches will pose a security vulnerability, an 
immediate risk to the Council but also likely to result in the Council being 
excluded from connection to other secure networks, and; because of the 
difficulty in supporting the switches in the event of component failure there 
would be a risk to service delivery. 

 

 The existing switches could be upgraded. This is a feasible option but is not 
recommended because the upgrade path on the current switch models in use 
is of itself only a short life. 

 
27  AWARD OF TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE CONTRACT - KEY 

DECISION 
 

Liz Hiskens (Service Manager, Highways Network Management) and Syd Shaw 
(Technical Officer, Traffic Control Centre), presented a report on the Traffic Signal 
and Maintenance contract. The current contact is coming to a close, and the 
highways team is working with a number of local authorities to get the best value for 
a new contract, in joint collaboration with Warwickshire County Council (WCC) and 
Coventry City Council (CCC). The contract covers maintenance of signals, variable 
signs, rising bollards and all intelligent highways systems. The contract will allow for 
upkeep and maintenance, and significant capital investment. 
 
RESOLVED to: 
 
(1) authorise The Head of Traffic to approve the award of the traffic signal 

maintenance contract to the successful supplier from the outcome of the 
collaborative OJEU tendering process conducted by WCC, Nottingham 
City Council and CCC; 

 
(2) authorise The Head of Traffic to sign the back-to-back agreement on 

behalf of Nottingham City Council with WCC, which ensures access to 
core and additional services under the traffic signal maintenance 
contract. 

Page 7



Commissioning and Procurement Sub-Committee - 10.09.19 

6 

 
Reasons for decision 
 
The contract ensures that the Council can continue to fulfil its duty in maintaining and 
inspecting traffic signal junctions, pedestrian crossings and other related on street 
equipment at regular intervals. 
 
Other options considered 
 
NCC has the option of tendering for the new traffic signals contract on its own, 
however, this option was not taken, as the benefits of collaborative working would not 
be realised. The opportunity cost to NCC would be all the financial benefits which 
would result from collective bargaining and economies of scale available in the 
market under a collaborative approach with WCC and CCC. 
 
28  TRAVEL AND ACCOMMODATION - KEY DECISION 

 
Steve Oakley (Head of Contracting and Procurement) and Elisa Flintoff (Contracts 
Performance Officer) presented a report on the award of a Travel and 
Accommodation contract. The proposed contract can also be used to book last 
minute overnight accommodation for citizens. Reports on emergency citizen 
accommodation are sent every fortnight to the relevant Portfolio Holder, and there is 
a ‘gatekeeper’ on the ability to use this provision. Usage is tracked and monitored 
very closely, and is only used as a last resort. Staff accommodation and travel has 
reduced dramatically in recent years, and Corporate Directors are provided with 
information to take appropriate action if policy is breached. The system also allows 
Nottingham City Council to cap spend. 
 
RESOLVED to: 
 
(1) award a 4 year contract(s) following a call off process to a travel booking 

management provider to offer corporate travel solution as the current 
framework contract is due to expire November 2019; 

 
(2) delegate authority to the Director of Strategy and Resources to award the 

contract(s), and to delegate authority to the Head of Contracting and 
Procurement to sign any contract documents produced as a result; 

 
(3) approve spend as detailed in Exempt Appendix 1 against this decision, 

noting that individual service areas review the need for travel and 
accommodation expenditure. 

 
Reasons for decision 
 

 A travel and accommodation booking system is required to enable Council 
Colleagues to book travel as necessary, to perform their duties and meet 
statutory responsibilities. The accommodation booking facility may also be 
used for booking emergency accommodation for vulnerable citizens in the 
event that all other alternative options have been exhausted. 

 

Page 8



Commissioning and Procurement Sub-Committee - 10.09.19 

7 

 The existing arrangement is due to expire 30 November 2019 and Nottingham 
City Council requires a new contract(s) to ensure compliance and best value. 
 

Other options considered 
 

 Do nothing - as the current contractual arrangement will expire 30 November 
2019, this would expose the Council to a risk of higher costs and for this 
reason this option was rejected. 

 

 Advertise and run a competitive tender exercise - this is not deemed to be best 
value due to the administrative costs and time involved. Due to delays in 
implementing a new contract, Nottingham City Council cannot delay further 
before making an award to the most advantageous provider. 

 
29  EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

 
RESOLVED to exclude the public from the meeting during consideration of the 
remaining items in accordance with Section 100(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 on the basis that, having regard to all the circumstances, the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information. 
 
30  TRAVEL AND ACCOMMODATION - EXEMPT APPENDIX 

 
RESOLVED to note the information contained in the exempt appendix. 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



COMMISSIONING AND PROCUREMENT SUB-COMMITTEE – 14 January 
2020 

   

Subject: Funding for Nottingham Schools Trust            
 

Corporate 
Director(s)/ 
Director(s): 

Catherine Underwood, Corporate Director for People  
Nick Lee, Director of Education Services 

Portfolio Holder(s): Cllr Neghat Khan, Portfolio Holder for Education, Employment and Skills  

Report author and 
contact details: 

Jennifer Hardy, Programme Manager  
Jennifer.hardy@nottinghamcity.gov.uk  0115 87 65629      

Key Decision               Yes        No Subject to call-in      Yes           No 

Reasons:  Expenditure  Income  Savings of £1,000,000 or 
more taking account of the overall impact of the decision 

 Revenue   Capital  

Significant impact on communities living or working in two or more 
wards in the City  

 Yes      No  

Total value of the decision: £1.18 Million  

Wards affected: All Date of consultation with Portfolio 
Holder(s): 16th December 2019 

Relevant Council Plan Key Theme:   

Nottingham People  

Living in Nottingham  

Growing Nottingham  

Respect for Nottingham  

Serving Nottingham Better  

Summary of issues (including benefits to citizens/service users):  
      
Nottingham Schools Trust (NST) opened in September 2017 and was initially funded through a 
grant funding agreement. This agreement was a temporary measure until the trust had 
established itself and this paper seeks to enter in to five year funding agreement with NST.  
 

Exempt information: 
None  

Recommendation(s):  

1 Authorise the award of three five year contracts to Nottingham Schools Trust relating to 
intervention, school improvement and quality assurance       

2 Agree dispensation from Contract Procedure Rule 5.1.2 in accordance with Financial 
Regulation 3.29 to allow the direct award of these three contracts to Nottingham Schools 
Trust for the reasons given in this report.       

 
 
1 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
1.1 Nottingham Schools Trust (NST) opened in September 2017 and is an 

education trust where maintained schools and standalone academies have 
partnered to deliver school improvement in their own schools and the other 
schools in the trust. NST is a genuine alternative to academisation. 

 
1.2  In the relatively short time NST has been operating, it has enjoyed significant 

success and 97% of schools in NST are now rated either Good or 
Outstanding by Ofsted (100% of the primary schools in the trust are Good or 
Outstanding). NST opened with 33 member schools and three additional 
schools have since joined.  

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5

mailto:Jennifer.hardy@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


1.3  Based on the performance of the trust and the continued excellent working 
relationship with the Council, this report seeks approval to award three 
contracts directly to NST for the following:  

 

Contract title  Annual figure  Five year figure  

Intervention  £120,000 £600,000 

School Improvement 
monitoring 

£83,565 £417,825 

Quality Assurance  £32,000 £160,000 

Totals £235,565 £1,177,825 

 
 
1.4  Two of the contracts will be funded by the annual school improvement grants 

Nottingham City Council receives from the Department for Education (DfE) to support 
school improvement in maintained schools and the figures are based on the current 
total values of those grants. If the figures received from the DfE fluctuate, the value 
received by NST will reflect this fluctuation and this will be built in to the individual 
contracts. The Quality Assurance contract will be funded through the Council’s Quality 
Assurance budget for maintained schools.   

 
1.5  This report seeks dispensation from financial regulations to directly award the three 

contracts to Nottingham Schools Trust. This is because NST are uniquely placed to 
deliver the full school improvement package the council is seeking, due mostly to its 
membership. NST is funded through two income streams; DfE funds via NCC and the 
£5,100 annual membership fee charged to all of its 36 member schools. Whilst the 
income allows NST to deliver a comprehensive range of school improvement support, 
the value of NST also lies with its membership and the time member schools put in to 
peer to peer support and attendance at trust-wide development meetings.  

 
1.6  NST would be destabilised without the school improvement funding from the DfE and 

Nottingham City Council and would most likely cease trading which, in light of its 
tremendous success in a short period of time is not a desired outcome. Awarding a five 
year contract to NST will give the trust further stability and time to develop and deliver 
further ambitious school improvement.  

 
2 BACKGROUND (INCLUDING OUTCOMES OF CONSULTATION) 
 
2.1 Nottingham Schools Trust opened in September 2017, following a year of planning 

and development work by a working group of Head Teachers and a cross-
department team at Nottingham City Council. NST was established as an 
opportunity for maintained schools and standalone academies to be part of a large 
trust whilst also retaining their autonomy. NST is a company limited by guarantee 
and although it is a separate entity, NCC has a 20% stake in the trust at member 
level and an elected member on the board of trustees. Every school who joins NST 
nominates an individual to be a member (similar to shareholder) and the members 
meet annually to vote on key policies for the trust.  

 
2.2  The Trust is managed by joint-Chief Executive Officers Pat and Sarah Fielding who 

are also Head Teachers in two schools in the city. The CEO’s are responsible to 
the board of trustees.  

 
2.3 The primary focus of NST is school improvement and all of the income the trust 

receives is spent on improving outcomes for its member schools. The CEO’s of 
NST meet with the Director of Education Services, the Corporate Director of 
People and the Portfolio Holder for Education, Skills and Employment on a regular 

Page 12



basis where KPIs and outcomes are monitored. The CEOs also attend the Schools 
Causing Concern meetings on a regular basis.  

 
2.4 Management of the new five year contracts will be done through these existing, 

meaningful channels.   
 
3 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED IN MAKING RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 The option to go out to tender was considered but this was disregarded. NCC 

played a significant role in the establishment of NST and the outcomes to date 
have exceeded expectations. Whilst some of the school improvement functions 
could be tendered for, the power and success of the NST model comes from the 
whole package of the trust and this could not be replicated with a different model. 
Therefore, going out to tender was not considered a reasonable option.  

 
4 FINANCE COLLEAGUE COMMENTS (INCLUDING IMPLICATIONS AND 

VALUE FOR MONEY/VAT) 
 
4.1 This report proposes to award three contracts to the Nottingham Schools 

Trust (NST) for the delivery of school improvement activities on behalf of the 
Local Authority (LA).  
 

4.2 The proposed contract terms is for five years.  The financial recommendation 
is to reduce the contract term to a three year term, with the option to extend 
for a further two years (1+1). This would provide the LA with greater financial 
flexibility and reduce the risk of entering into a longer term contract with a 
relatively new organisation.    
 

4.3 The contracts to deliver school improvement and quality assurance services 
forms part of the LA’s base budget used to support external expenditure 
associated with this function. The total annual budget for these services is 
£0.152m (£0.760m for five years). There is no impact to employees or the 
current MTFP from this proposal.    
 

4.4 The financial recommendations of this business case is predicated on receipt 
of the Department of Education successfully providing the LA with the 
‘Schools Improvement Monitoring and Brokering Grant Allocation to support 
external expenditure associated with this function. There is no impact to 
employees from this proposal, however the grant is calculated based on the 
Area Cost Adjustment and the number of eligible schools in an area and 
therefore subject to change.  Any changes should be reflected in the contract 
avoiding any risk to the LA. 
 

4.5 The LA currently contribute 20% to the NST in accordance with its interest of 
the net value of the organisation. Future contributions will be considered 
through the organisation’s internal governance process.    
 

4.6    To ensure value for money, robust governance arrangements are required as 
part of the contract to monitor performance in line with the KPIs set out in the 
appendices to this report.  
 

4.7  In addition, the shareholder / partnership agreement should stipulate the 
introduction of a financial sub group to review the annual financial statements 
and new-year budgets.  This will provide the following benefits: 
 

Page 13



4.7.1 A financial health check of NST and highlight any associated risk 

and sensitives to the early intervention agenda in schools.  

4.7.2 Agree all payment plans 

4.7.3 Support the annual review of the LA’s 20% contribution to be 

approved through the organisations internal governance process.   

   

4.8 The financial recommendation assume payments will be made within financial 

years 

4.9 The report seeks dispensation from Contract Procedure Rule 3.1.2 in 
accordance with Financial Regulation 3.29. This is appropriate due to the 
significant improvements to services detailed in the report and appendices, 
and NST’s unique positon to meet the LA requirements.   

 
Christine Green, Strategic Finance Business Partner (Children’s & Education) 
09 December 2019 
  
5 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT COLLEAGUE COMMENTS (INLUDING RISK 

MANAGEMENT ISSUES, AND INCLUDING LEGAL, CRIME AND DISORDER 
ACT AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS) 

 
5.1 The City Council is proposing to award three contracts to Nottingham Schools 

Trust. The contracts for the services to be provided by the Nottingham Schools are 
subject to the ‘light touch’ regime in the Public Contracts Regulations 2015. The 
financial threshold for light touch services is £615,278 and therefore each of the 
contracts is below the threshold and a direct award to Nottingham Schools Trust is 
permissible. The proposal to award three separate contracts is considered to be a 
legitimate procurement strategy. Contracts should be put in place with the 
Nottingham Schools Trust for the services which include the KPIs set out in the 
appendices to this report. 

 Andrew James - Team Leader, Commercial, Employment and Education 5th 
December 2019 

 
5.2 Procurement Comments 
  
 This report proposes the award of three contracts to the Nottingham Schools Trust 

(NST) for the delivery of school improvement activities funded by the Department 
for Education grants. This will enable the continued delivery of an ambitious and 
successful programme of school improvement activity in the City. NST is 
considered uniquely placed to deliver the services required due to its established 
operating model and the membership of schools. The outcomes delivered to date 
have exceeded expectations and the services could not be replicated through an 
alternative delivery model. For these reasons, dispensation from Contract 
Procedure Rule 3.1.2 in accordance with Financial Regulation 3.29 is supported 
from a procurement perspective.  

 Jo Pettifor – Category Manager (Strategy and People), 5th December 2019 
 
6 STRATEGIC ASSETS & PROPERTY COLLEAGUE COMMENTS (FOR 

DECISIONS RELATING TO ALL PROPERTY ASSETS AND ASSOCIATED 
INFRASTRUCTURE (STRATEGIC REGENERATION COMMITTEE REPORTS 
ONLY) 

 
6.1 None 
 

Page 14



7 SOCIAL VALUE CONSIDERATIONS 
 

7.1 None 
 
8 REGARD TO THE NHS CONSTITUTION 
 
8.1 None  
 
9 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT (EIA) 
 
9.1 Has the equality impact of the proposals in this report been assessed? 
 
 No         
 An EIA is not required because this is not a new or changing function or 

service.  
  
 
 Yes         
  

 
10 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS RELIED UPON IN WRITING THIS REPORT 

(NOT INCLUDING PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS OR CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT 
INFORMATION) 

 
10.1 None  
 
11 PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS REFERRED TO IN THIS REPORT 
 
11.1 None  
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



COMMISSIONING AND PROCUREMENT SUB-COMMITTEE – 14/01/2020 
   

Subject: Building Services, Mechanical And Electrical Team Procurement 
Requirements – 2020-24 

Corporate 
Director(s)/ 
Director(s): 

Andy Vaughan, Corporate Director for Commercial & Operations 
Dave Halstead, Director of Neighbourhood Services 

Portfolio Holder(s): Councillor Sally Longford, Portfolio Holder Energy, Environment and 
Democratic Services 

Report author and 
contact details: 

Mark Bradbury, Infrastructure Delivery Manager   
Tel: 0115 876 1353        Email: Mark.Bradbury@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 
David King, Head of Building Services 
Tel: 07525917183              Email: David.King@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 

Key Decision               Yes        No Subject to call-in      Yes           No 

Reasons:  Expenditure  Income  Savings of £1,000,000 or 
more taking account of the overall impact of the decision 

 Revenue   Capital  

Significant impact on communities living or working in two or more 
wards in the City  

 Yes      No  

Total value of the decision: £14.85 m 

Wards affected: All Date of consultation with Portfolio 
Holder(s): 7th Jan 2020 

Relevant Council Plan Key Theme:   

Nottingham People  

Living in Nottingham  

Growing Nottingham  

Respect for Nottingham  

Serving Nottingham Better  

Summary of issues (including benefits to citizens/service users):  
This report sets out the requirements for Nottingham City Council (NCC), Building Services 
Mechanical and Electrical (M&E) team to procure multiple Frameworks to enhance the expanding 
service requirements. The 6 specific frameworks that will be procured are as detailed below. The 
benefit of this approach is being able to enhance the specialist M&E team maximising the 
delivery of internally led works and supporting the team in periods of peak workload  
 
Building Services at NCC has a core M&E team. The delivery of works by this team is key to 
NCC’s commercialism strategy, in-sourcing works where it is economically advantageous to do 
so. To support the existing team it is essential to have access to a supply chain that is 
encompassed within a framework to deliver value for money, whilst improving the local spend, 
therefore enhancing local employment opportunities. 
 
The frameworks will allow the M&E team to support the existing workforce. The Frameworks will 
benefit the team by allowing specialist services to complement a professional delivery team both 
on site and within office operations. 
 
1. Electrical Support Framework (£1m over 4 years): 
This framework will consist of but not limited to the following disciplines; 

 Electrician  
 

2. Mechanical Support Framework (£2.5m over 4 years): 

 Plumber  

 Domestic Gas Engineer 

 Commercial Gas Engineer 

 Mechanical Fitter  
 

With these services/disciplines it will allow the team to expand the current workforce as required 
Page 17

Agenda Item 6

mailto:Mark.Bradbury@nottinghamcity.gov.uk
mailto:David.King@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


where work commitments exceeds that of the internal team. 
 
3. Electrical Contracting Supply and Install Framework (£5m over 4 years): 
This framework will consist of, but not limited to the following; 

 Electrical Supply and Install 

 Electrical Testing 
 
4. Mechanical Contracting Supply and Install Framework (£4.8m over 4 years): 
This framework will consist of, but not limited to the following; 

 Mechanical Supply and Install 

 Out of Hours Call Out 
 
These Frameworks will enable the team to manage more commercially execute demanding m&e 
projects, with the benefit of going to the local market to support the workforce.  Where the DLO is 
at capacity with existing requirements, the team will have the ability to outsource and manage 
accordingly. 
 
5. Flue Fabrication and Install Framework (£0.3m over 4 years): 
This framework will consist of, but not limited to the following; 

 Fabrication and install of specialist flue systems 

 
This framework will allow the team to maximise the delivery of mechanical install by enabling 
installation works requiring this specialist element to be delivery by the current in-house team.  
 
6. Tool Hire Framework £1.5m over 4 years): 
This framework will consist of the following; 

 Small Tools 

 Scaffolding 

 Power Generation and Lighting 

 Powered Access 

 Specialist Gas, Water and Electricity equipment 

 
The Framework will support the workforce to ensure that they have access to the correct and 
specialist tools/equipment for the multitude of works undertaken by the service. 

Exempt information: None  

Recommendation(s):  

1 To approve the procurement of Framework Agreements in-line with Public Procurement 
Regulations 2015.   

2 To delegate authority to the Head of Service for Building Services to approve the outcome of 
the procurement processes and award Framework Agreements in-line with criteria as set out 
within the tender documentation. 

3 To delegate authority to the appropriate person within Building Services in-line with the 
Financial Regulations, to call off from the Framework Agreements  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



1 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

1.1 NCC adopts a mixed approach to the delivery of M&E work that utilises the 
Council’s own skilled workforce and fully supports the City Council’s ambitious 
commercialisation agenda.  
 
Procuring the Frameworks will result in the following advantages;  

 A value-for-money delivery model with no fixed financial commitment to 
use the framework.  

 Opportunities for local Small to Medium Enterprise (SME) companies to 
tender for the work.  

 The potential for a local workforce either through direct employment or 
through regional SME sub-contractors. 

 
The delivery model has number of additional benefits including;  
 

 Strong links to our corporate value and objectives  

 A highly flexible and responsive structure to accommodate short term 
changes to design programmes.  

 Local knowledge available in the planning and assessment of proposed 
works 

 
 
2 BACKGROUND (INCLUDING OUTCOMES OF CONSULTATION) 
 
 
2.1 It is essential that NCC has a compliant procurement route for the delivery of our 

M&E teams’ activities. The above frameworks secure that works of all sizes can 
continue to be led by internal resources and provided the flexibility to manage 
peaks in workload as demanded by clients both internally and externally. This 
flexibility ensures that the M&E team can continue to deliver a proactive value for 
money service. 

 
2.2 The Employment and Skills Support Service is NCC’s local employment and 

training service and will help the Council to deliver opportunities for local people 
while providing a free recruitment and training service to meet the workforce needs 
of contractors. 

 
2.3 It is anticipated that the contract model will satisfy the funding requirements for 

European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) and the Regional Local Enterprise 
Partnerships (LEP). 

 
2.4 To enable procurement of best value, whilst incorporating NCC’s needs, it is vital 

that the network of frameworks are in place to support and enhance the M&E 
teams in-house workforce, along with encouraging local employment and spend. 

 
 
3 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED IN MAKING RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 Do nothing – no authorised procurement is in place for the provision of specialist 

services and as such would not be compliant with Nottingham City Council’s 
Financial Regulations and Public Procurement Regulation 2015. 

 

Page 19



3.2 Insource all of the activity covered by the contract areas under consideration 
for renewal - this option has been rejected due to the following; capacity, 
complexity, risk and value for money.  
 

4 FINANCE COLLEAGUE COMMENTS (INCLUDING IMPLICATIONS AND 
VALUE FOR MONEY/VAT) 

 
4.1 The proposal seeks the use of a specialist Framework Contracts in order to 

commission m&e design and delivery in line with the City Council’s Financial 
Regulations and Contract Procedure Rules. 

 
4.2 The framework should offer a compliant procurement route to a flexible and 

responsive offer throughout the supply chain, with an emphasis on value for 
money, lead times and quality of service. 

 
4.3 It should be made clear that by accessing this compliant procurement route, there 

should be no fixed up-front fee offered: i.e. No financial commitment to any service. 
 
4.4 The framework does not guarantee any value to successful contractors therefore 

the Council is not committed to any expenditure; therefore, approval to extend this 
framework agreement does not carry a contractual commitment to spend 
resources. 

 
4.5 All necessary checks should be made when accessing the framework to ensure 

that the services being procured are CIS Compliant. 
 
(Advice provided by Meagan Milic, Commercial Finance Partner 18/12/2019) 
 
5 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT COLLEAGUE COMMENTS (INLUDING RISK 

MANAGEMENT ISSUES, AND INCLUDING LEGAL, CRIME AND DISORDER 
ACT AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS) 

 
 
5.1 The proposals in this report provide for an effective procurement approach in the 

delivery of m&e works. The strategy is in line with the City Council’s financial and 
procurement regulations and is considered appropriate and will provide good value 
for money. (Sue Oliver, Category Manager Places, 18/12/19) 

 
5.2 This report does not raise any significant legal issues. The Legal Services team will 

work with the procurement and M&E team to assist with the development of the 
framework and call-off contracts.  

 
(Advice provided by Naomi Vass, Senior Solicitor, 18/12/19) 

 
6 STRATEGIC ASSETS & PROPERTY COLLEAGUE COMMENTS (FOR 

DECISIONS RELATING TO ALL PROPERTY ASSETS AND ASSOCIATED 
INFRASTRUCTURE (STRATEGIC REGENERATION COMMITTEE REPORTS 
ONLY) 

 
6.1 N/A 
 
7 SOCIAL VALUE CONSIDERATIONS 

 
7.1 The overall procurement arrangements ensure delivery of specialist elements, 

flexibility in programming and resource targeting, and opportunities for local 

Page 20



training and employment by requiring contractors to source staff through the 
Employment and Skills support service 

 
7.2 The Employment and Skills Support Service has agreed training and jobs 

outcomes with Facilities and Building Services and Procurement as part of the 
Business Charter process. Going forward we believe this framework will offer a 
good opportunity to generate jobs for local people and these will be facilitated by a 
dedicated account manager in the Jobs Hub. 

 
8 REGARD TO THE NHS CONSTITUTION 
 
8.1 N/A 
 
9 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT (EIA) 
 
9.1 Has the equality impact of the proposals in this report been assessed? 
 
 No         
 An EIA is not required because this report is not approving a new or changing 

service. 
 
 Yes         
 

 
10 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS RELIED UPON IN WRITING THIS REPORT 

(NOT INCLUDING PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS OR CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT 
INFORMATION) 

 
10.1 N/A 
 
11 PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS REFERRED TO IN THIS REPORT 
 
11.1 N/A 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



COMMISSIONING AND PROCUREMENT SUB-COMMITTEE – 14/01/20 
   

Subject:            
Mental Health Accommodation and Support Pathways  

Corporate 
Director(s)/ 
Director(s): 

Catherine Underwood – Corporate Director of People 
Katy Ball – Director of Commissioning and Procurement            

Portfolio Holder(s): Councillor Adele Williams, Portfolio Holder for Adult Care and Local 
Transport 

Report author and 
contact details: 

Claire Labdon-West, Lead Commissioning Manager 
claire.labdon-west@nottinghamcity.gov.uk  Tele: 0115 8764804      

Key Decision               Yes        No Subject to call-in      Yes           No 

Reasons:  Expenditure  Income  Savings of £1,000,000 or 
more taking account of the overall impact of the decision 

 Revenue   Capital  

Significant impact on communities living or working in two or more 
wards in the City  

 Yes      No  

Total value of the decision: £14,355,216 for new contracts (on 3+2+2+2 year basis) plus 
£797,512 for potential 6 month extension period: Total Value up to: £15,152,728 

Wards affected: All Date of consultation with Portfolio 
Holder(s): 17th December 2019 

Relevant Council Plan Key Theme:   

Nottingham People  

Living in Nottingham  

Growing Nottingham  

Respect for Nottingham  

Serving Nottingham Better  

Summary of issues (including benefits to citizens/service users):  
 
This report seeks approval to commission four Housing Related Support Services and two 
Independent Living Support Services for people with mental ill health (as outlined in appendix 1).  
These services support adults with mental ill health to live independently or to recover sufficiently 
to move to more independent living arrangements and to help reduce the need for other more 
intensive forms of support. 
 
These services have been reviewed as part of the Mental Health Accommodation and Support 
Pathways Strategic Commissioning Review (SCR).    

Exempt information: 
None  

Recommendation(s):  

1    To approve the commissioning of a Mental Health Reablement service, which will replace the 
current Independent Living Support Service for which the contract ends on the 31st of March 
2020. 

2    To approve to undertake a tender process for a Mental Health Reablement service, four-
accommodation based Housing Related Support (HRS) services and the Forensic Outreach 
Service for a contract period of 3+2+2+2 years. This will be for an annual contractual value of 
up to £1,595,024.       

3   To delegate authority to the Head of Service for Contracting and Procurement to approve and 
     sign off the outcome of the tender process for the four HRS services, the Mental Health 

Reablement service and the Forensic Outreach Service and to award a contract. 

4.   To note that one of the HRS services –Hughenden Lodge is subject to agreement by NHS 
Greater Nottingham Clinical Commissioning Partnership to maintain joint funding.  
Discussions with NHS Greater Nottingham Clinical Commissioning Partnership suggests that 
they may change the method of payment from a block fund arrangement to a S117 and 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7

mailto:claire.labdon-west@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


continuing healthcare arrangement.  NCC should receive confirmation by the latest February 
2020 as to how they will pay for the service. 

 

5    To approve the spend associated with this decision in recommendation (£14,355,216) for a 
potential contract period of nine years. 

6    To approve an extension of six months from 1st of April 2020 in relation to the current 
contracts (as outlined in Appendix 1).  This will be required if there is a change in provider 
and a longer implementation period is required or for some other reason. This will be up to a 
total value of £797,512. 

7   To approve dispensation from Contract Procedure Rules 5.1.1 and 5.1.2 in accordance with 
Financial regulations 3.29 to allow for 6 month extensions as outlined in recommendation 6 
and for the funding of services for the 6 month period as outlined in Appendix 1. 

8.   To delegate authority to the Head of Contracting and Procurement to issue extensions to 
contracts up to the values noted in Appendix 1. 

 
 
1 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
1.1 The services within the scope of this report (see appendix 1) have been 

reviewed recently.  The review concluded that these services are generally 
operating effectively in line with current requirements.  These services enable 
the Council to deliver against its statutory requirements under the Mental 
Health Act 1983 and the Care Act 2014. 
 

1.2 Approval is sought to procure six services; a Mental Health Reablement 
service, four-accommodation based HRS services and the Forensic Outreach 
Service which will support people with mental ill health.  A competitive tender 
process will be undertaken which will deliver value for money.   
 

1.3 The recent review suggests that the current HRS services provide value for money 
when compared against other provision within the mental health pathway such as 
residential care or accommodation based Care Support and Enablement. 
 

1.4 It is proposed to delegate authority to the Head of Contract and Procurement to issue 
the contracts and agree the corresponding contract values (up to the values noted in 
Appendix 1) subject to the outcome of the procurement process.  

 
1.5 Nottingham City Council (NCC) and NHS Greater Nottingham Clinical Commissioning 

Partnership jointly fund Hughenden, one of the existing HRS services.  The further 
delivery of this service is subject to NHS Greater Nottingham Clinical Commissioning 
Partnership maintaining its funding during the period of the contract as outlined in 
Appendix 1.  

 
1.6 Longer contract periods are being recommended for the services outlined in Appendix 

1, as this will support opportunity for providers to innovate during the contract life and 
respond to any necessary and permitted contractual changes. 

 
1.7 The provision to extend the current contracts for a period of up to six months is 

recommended to provide sufficient time for implementation should a new provider 
successfully bid for the contract.  It will allow potential new providers to support services 
users with transition arrangements. If the existing provider is successful in the tender 
process then an extension should not be required.  

 

Page 24



1.8 It is proposed to delegate authority to the Head of Contract and Procurement to issue 
the contract extensions and agree the corresponding contract values (up to the values 
noted in Appendix 1). 

 
1.9 The recommendations above are based on current budgetary projections of NCC and 

partners.  The contracts will allow commissioners to review services in the context of 
budgetary pressures as well as managing any changes required due to a shift in policy 
and legislative changes. 
 

2 BACKGROUND (INCLUDING OUTCOMES OF CONSULTATION) 
 
2.1 There is a legal requirement to procure these services, as the current contracts are 

due to end on the 31st of March 2020. 
 
2.2   A Mental Health Board comprising of internal stakeholders was set up to oversee 

the review.  A range of engagement activities have taken place with stakeholders, 
including with citizens who access existing services, to inform the review. 

 
2.3   With regard to the HRS services the review found that: 
 

    Accommodation based HRS services are effective for many citizens; enabling 
service users to recover from their mental ill health and move onto a greater level 
of independence. These services provide support for a maximum period of two 
years.  

    HRS services deliver value for money.  Costs vary across provision due to the 
different levels of support they provide.  The costs range from £176.80 per 
service user per week to £396.85 per service user per week.  The higher cost 
provision tends to support service users whose journey to better health is further 
away. 

    A high proportion of those in HRS provision successfully move into independent 
living with little input from social care.  For example, out of the current 93 service 
users 50 were deemed able to move into independent living (self-contained 
provision) and 16 were identified as requiring longer term intervention, for 
example residential care or Care Support and Enablement. At the time the 
remaining 27 required further assessment before an appropriate long term option 
could be identified.  This compares well with previous years where a similar 
number of service users moved onto successful independent living.  

    HRS services are a crucial response from NCC to avoid delayed discharges from 
the specialist hospital wards.  

   There is good partnership working between the individual services and provision 
and the Adult Social Care Mental Health teams; both valuing the input of each 
other. 

    HRS services are currently mixed provision. The review suggested however that 
there was a low take up from women. Further exploration of this found that it can 
be a challenge for providers to support women safely in mixed provision. It also 
found that some women with mental ill health have been physically and/or 
sexually abused and therefore will not access this type of mixed provision.  The 
review identified that the options for women were often longer-term, for example 
residential Care, Care Support and Enablement or Aidan House which a service 
for women with complex needs. There appears to be a gap for women who 
require short-term specialist mental health support but there is not currently the 
evidence base to determine what the specific need is. This will be monitored 
during the life of the contract and a new service developed when appropriate, 
subject to usual decision making processes. The contract for the HRS services 

Page 25



will make allowances for the development of a female only service during the life 
of the contract should this be required.  

   The HRS services are in demand but the current providers did not think there was 
a need for additional provision.  The rationale for this was that specialist clinical 
support from the NHS if provided quickly would speed up recovery journeys.  The 
other issue was identifying and securing appropriate and safe accommodation for 
service users to move into. The monitoring arrangements in the new contracts 
will be designed in order to ensure that there is sufficient supply to meet demand.  

   There is a need for clear expectations around outcomes for citizens to ensure 
timely move on into independent accommodation. This will be incorporated into 
the new service specifications and monitored as part of the ongoing contract 
management arrangements.  

 
2.4   The Independent Living Support Service (ILSS) is split into two contracts.  The 

larger financial contract (refer to appendix 1) delivers specialist mental health 
support and the smaller financial contract supports a small number of service users 
(14 at any one time) who are in the care of the NHS and Social Care Forensic 
Team.  

 
2.5   The current specialist mental health service has two key elements to it.  These are: 

   Outreach support within the mental health wards- patients are supported with 

discharge to appropriate provision, support and care. 

    Outreach support in the community - supports service users within 

independent settings or transition from supported living into independent 

living.   

2.6   The forensic contract provides specialist forensic outreach provision within secure 
units.  The workers for this provision support fourteen individuals at any given time 
and work alongside the forensic social care team. The service supports the social 
care team in enabling citizens leave a secure hospital environment and move into 
independent living with dedicated floating outreach support. The support lasts as 
long as the citizen requires it and the service is successful in moving people on 
who no longer require their intervention.  Like the new reablement service, this 
service will help with a range of practical things such as housing issues, budgeting, 
and welfare advice.  The service is also able to support them to manage their 
mental ill health.   
 

2.7  The review of the current pathway found inconsistencies in the support citizens 
were provided with. Due to the lack of a clear pathway, the support offered was 
often dependent on several factors including the knowledge of the allocated worker 
and which service was available on the day. A lack of a highly focused time limited 
reablement service was also highlighted and this is a model of support which is 
available to citizens who utilise other Adult Social Care Pathways.  

 
 Though the current specialist support service was found to work well, analysis 

highlighted that the length of support it offers (maximum two years, on average ten 
months) may create unnecessary dependency or a delay in being referred into 
appropriate longer-term support.  

 
 Because of these factors a reablement service is being recommended. 

 

The Mental Health Reablement service will focus on identifying barriers to 

independent living and then working collaboratively with the citizen to develop 

a personalised support plan which will support them towards independence in 

Page 26



a time limited period. Citizens who require a longer term service will progress 

through the pathway as per appendix 2. The Reablement service will maintain 

the two key elements of the current service; working with the mental health 

wards as well as outreach within the community. The Reablement service will 

also be available to citizens who have been supported by other service, where 

the allocated worker feels that a period of reablement would be of benefit.  

 

2.8 The procurement of these services are as detailed in Appendix 1, will enable the 
Council to meet is statutory obligations under procurement law.  
 

 
3 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED IN MAKING RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 The option not to procure but to directly award the services to current providers 

was considered however this was discounted as it would meant that NCC were not 
meeting it legal obligations under procurement law.   

 
4 FINANCE COLLEAGUE COMMENTS (INCLUDING IMPLICATIONS AND 

VALUE FOR MONEY/VAT) 
 
4.1 This decision seeks approval for the procurement of a new Adult Social Care 

(ASC) Enablement Service, to replace the current Independent Living Support 
Service (ILSS) for the provision of Housing Related Support Services for citizens 
with mental ill health.  

 
4.2 This decision results in an annual contract value of £1.595m and a total contract 

value of £14.355m over the maximum contract period of 9 years outlined in this 
decision (on a 3+2+2+2 year basis). This cost will be funded from existing ASC 
service budgets included within the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan 
(MTFP). 

 
4.3 One contract, included in the contract values above and outlined in Appendix 1, is 

currently jointly funded with NHS Greater Nottingham Clinical Commissioning 
Partnership (GNCCP) and the continuation of this funding is still subject to 
agreement for the proposed contract period outlined in this decision. If the NHS 
funding of £0.185m per annum (or £1.665m over the maximum contract period) is 
not maintained, action will need to be taken to ensure the shortfall in funding is 
mitigated from existing ASC service budgets included within the Council’s MTFP.  
However, it should be noted that this is unlikely to happen as the review found that 
GNCCP is also statutorily responsible for the cohort within these services. 
Therefore, they will be financially liable for at least the level they currently fund.  
The issue that remains to be resolved is the method that the GNCCP funds the 
services as they have indicated that they may move to a S117 and continuing 
health care model of funding rather than block funding.  The GNCCP would have 
to give notice to NCC as to the method of payment and this does correlate with our 
notice period of three months.  

 
4.4 This report also seeks approval to extend the current contracts, for a period of 6 

months, if required, from 01 April 2020 to support an adequate transition and 
implementation phase for the new contracts. The total value of the 6 month 
extension would be £0.798m and this cost would also be funded from existing ASC 
service budgets included within the Council’s MTFP.  
 

Page 27



4.5 These services are crucial for NCC to enable timely discharge from specialist 
hospital wards. Value for money will be achieved through the recommendations in 
this report by supporting vulnerable citizens through a range of services preventing 
the need for more intensive support.  

 
 The proposed maximum contract values detailed in Appendix 1 have 

demonstrated value for money through the review undertaken by the internal 
Mental Health Board. The review found that alternative suitable provision within the 
pathway cost significantly higher with costs often remaining longer term (care 
support enablement, residential).  This provision has a good record of supporting a 
significant amount of service users into independent living after an average stay of 
ten months.  The review highlighted areas for clearer outcomes in relation to the 
cluster part of the accommodation based services to ensure quicker move on.  
This will be incorporated in to revised service specifications and monitored closely 
throughout the contract period.  

 
4.6 In order to extend the current contracts outlined in Appendix 1, this decision seeks 

dispensation from Contract Procedure Rule 5.1.1 and 5.1.2 in accordance with 
Financial Regulations 3.29, Operational Issues, and for reasons outlined by the 
report author, this is deemed appropriate in these circumstances. 

 
 Hayley Mason, Strategic Finance Business Partner  
 24 December 2019 
 
5 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT COLLEAGUE COMMENTS (INLUDING RISK 

MANAGEMENT ISSUES, AND INCLUDING LEGAL, CRIME AND DISORDER 
ACT AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS) 

 
5.1 The procurement of Mental Health Accommodation and Support Services 

proposed in this report will be undertaken by the Procurement Team in compliance 
with the requirements of EU and UK Procurement Regulations (Light Touch 
Regime).    

 
 The extension of the current contracts will enable Commissioning and 

Procurement to ensure that there is an adequate transition period to the new 
arrangements by 1st September 2020.  Therefore, approval to dispense with 
Contract Procedure Rule 5.1.1 and 5.1.2 (as applicable) in accordance with 
Financial Regulation (3.29) (Operational Issues) with regard to extending the 
current contracts outlined in Appendix 1 Table 2 for up to 6 months from 1st April 
2020 are supported from a procurement perspective, and is allowed under Reg 72 
of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015.  (Julie Herrod, Lead Procurement Officer 
11/12/19). 

 
5.2 The review that was commissioned in relation to these services has been 

undertaken and has now been concluded. 
  
The review determined the best way to re-procure the services which will be 
by way of a complaint EU tender process for a combined collection of 
services. 
  
Due to the complexity of the services and the need to ensure a smooth 
transition for citizens, an interim extension of the existing contract is required 
prior to the new contract commencing. 
  

Page 28



The short term extension is deemed a permitted modification under regulation 
72(1) (b) of the Public Contract Regulations 2015 and is supported on the 
basis that for technical and economic reasons, it would be impracticable and 
cause significant inconvenience and duplication of costs to re-tender the 
contract immediately.  In addition, there is not deemed to be sufficient time to 
retender the contract without an extension nor sufficient time to enable 
tenders to be received and a reasonable transition period applied.   
  
It should be noted that now that the review has been concluded, work for the 
re-tender should be commenced as soon as practically possible to ensure no 
further delay occurs. 
  
Legal services will support procurement colleagues in the re-tender of the 
newly modelled service. (Dionne Screaton – Solicitor – 02/01/2020). 

 
 
6 STRATEGIC ASSETS & PROPERTY COLLEAGUE COMMENTS (FOR 

DECISIONS RELATING TO ALL PROPERTY ASSETS AND ASSOCIATED 
INFRASTRUCTURE (STRATEGIC REGENERATION COMMITTEE REPORTS 
ONLY) 

 
6.1   Not applicable as the report dos not relate to any property assets or property          

infrastructure.  
  
7 SOCIAL VALUE CONSIDERATIONS 

 
7.1 The contracts listed in appendix 1 provide assistance to improve the health and 

wellbeing of vulnerable adults with mental ill health.  These services will also be 
procured with the requirement for providers to deliver additional social value. For 
example, recruiting local people, developing skills within the local communities, 
raising awareness of mental ill health with other professionals etc.  

 
8 REGARD TO THE NHS CONSTITUTION 
 
8.1 Local Authorities have a statutory duty to have regard to the NHS Constitution 

when exercising their public health functions under the NHS Act 2006. In making 
decisions relating to public health, functions we consider the NHS Constitution 
where appropriate and take into account how it can be applied in order to 
commission services to improve health and wellbeing. 

 
9 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT (EIA) 
 
9.1 Has the equality impact of the proposals in this report been assessed? 
 
 No         
  
 
 Yes         
 Attached, as Appendix 3, and due regard will be given to any implications 

identified in it. 
 
10 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS RELIED UPON IN WRITING THIS REPORT 

(NOT INCLUDING PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS OR CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT 
INFORMATION) 

 

Page 29



10.1 None. 
 
11 PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS REFERRED TO IN THIS REPORT 
 
11.1 None 
 

Page 30



Appendix 1  

Mental Health Housing Related Support Services 

Contract and 
provider 

Cost per 
annum 

Funding Source Potential 
Period of 
award 

Indicative 
value of 
contract  
(9 years) (£m) 

Cost of 
proposed 
extension 
(6 months) 

Commentary  

STAR – 
Hugendon 
Lodge  - 
Framework 

£419,463 £234,463 per annum 
from Housing Related 
Service (HRS) 
Nottingham City Council 
(NCC) 
£185,000 per annum 
from Greater Nottingham 
Clinical Partnership 
(GNCP) 

3+2+2=2 £3,775,167  £209,731 Commence a tender process to procure 
the service for an initial period of three 
years with potential extensions of 2+2+2 
(commencing from 1st of April – 
September 2019).   
This service supports 30 service users in 
a year with complex mental health 
needs.  It supports appropriate discharge 
from Mental health wards. £260,040 per 
week.  

Mental Health 
Standard 
Service (All 
Saints) – 
Nottingham 
Community 
Homes 
Association 
(NCHA) 

£220,644 Full amount of £220,644 
funded solely by HRS NCC  

3+2+2+2 £1,985,796  £110,322 Commence a tender process to procure 
the service for an initial period of three 
years with potential extensions of 2+2+2 
(commencing from 1st of April – 
September 2019).  This service supports 
24 service user in a year with complex 
mental health needs.   It supports timely 
discharge from hospital.  Excellent value 
for money £176.80 per week per unit.  
 

The Crescent 
Recovery 
Service - 
Framework 

£284,813  Full amount of £284,813 
funded solely by HRS NCC 

3+2+2+2 £2,563,317 £142,406 Commence a tender process to procure 
the service for an initial period of three 
years with potential extensions of 
3+2+2+2 (commencing from 1st of April –

P
age 31



September 2019).  This service supports 
27 service users in a year whose primary 
need is mental health as well as other 
severe needs such as drug and alcohol 
abuse, violence, left prison etc. The 
service also supports timely discharge 
from hospital. Excellent value for money 
£202.86 per unit per week.  

Mental Health 
Resettlement – 
Stephanie 
Lodge - NCHA 

£227,000 Full amount of £227,000 
funded solely by HRS NCC 

3+2+2+2 £2,043,000 £113,500 Commence a tender process to procure 
the service for an initial period of three 
years with potential extensions of 
3+2+2+2 (commencing from 1st of April –
September 2019).  It has a enablement 
function and supporting timely discharge 
from hospital. This service supports 12 
service user over a year with complex 
mental health needs.   Excellent value 
for money £363.78 per unit per week.  

Independent 
Living Support 
Service 

N/A Full amount of extension 
will be funded solely by 
HRS NCC 

6 months N/A £198,914 This will allow for a transition period for 
service users currently engaged with this 
service.  

Reablement 
Service  

£397,829 Full amount of £397,829 
funded solely by HRS NCC 

3+2+2+2 £3,580,461  Commence a tender process to procure 
the service for an initial period of three 
years with potential extensions of 
3+2+2+2 (commencing from 1st of April –
September 2019).  The service will 
provide specialist support to service 
users with complex mental health needs 
as well as well as other severe needs. 
The reablement service will support all 
individuals coming into contact with the 
specialist mental health hospital wards 
or have been identified as either having 

P
age 32



a crisis  or at risk within the community. 
The support ranges from housing, 
welfare, debt, setting home, being safe, 
tackling isolation, medication prompting, 
ensuring they are accessing appropriate 
therapeutic services and primary health 
services. Excellent value for money £52 
per service user per week. 

Forensic Mental 
Health 
Framework sub 
contracts this 
element to 
NCHA  

£45,275 Full amount of £45,275 
funded solely by HRS NCC 

3+2+2+2 £407, 475  £22,637 This service is part of the wider ILSS but 
is a distinct element. It works with a 
specific cohort who are under forensic 
mental ill health specialists.  They 
support 14 service users in a year who 
are in secure hospital to move out into 
independent living with outreach 
floating support.  This works out to be 
£62 per service user per week.  

Total  £1,595,024   £14,355,216 £797,510  

 

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



HOSPITAL 
DISCHARGE
PATHWAY

MENTAL HEALTH 
PATHWAY

- Health & Care Point
- Ward Staff
- Community Teams
- NILSS Team

Own tenancy/home 
Universal or CSP in tenancy / home via 

a DP

CSE Outreach (6 mths)

Own tenancy/home 
Universal or CSP in 

tenancy / home via a DP

Housing Related Support (ST SL)

Own tenancy/home 
Universal or CSP in 

tenancy / home via a 
DP

CSE Supported Living (LT)

Extra Care (over 55)

Residential

Enablement 
worker and/or 
Social Worker 
develop Care 

Package 

Enablement 
Service (3 
months)

Leave service

Enablement 
Service (3 
months)

N
ee

d
s 

A
ss

es
se

d
 b

y 
S

o
ci

al
 W

o
rk

er
/C

A

P
an

el
 a

p
p

ro
ve

 p
ac

ka
g

e

Leave service

Need assessed at 
Community Together 

Surgery or 
appropriate place

CA

Own tenancy/home 
Universal or CSP in tenancy /home 

via a DP

CSE Supported Living (LT)

Extra Care (over 55)

Residential

CSE Outreach (6 mths)

Own tenancy/home 
Universal or CSP in 

tenancy /home via a DP

Housing Related Support (ST SL) Own tenancy/home 
Universal or CSP in 

tenancy /home via a DP

P
an

el
 a

p
p

ro
ve

 p
ac

ka
g

e

N
ee

d
s 

A
ss

es
se

d
 b

y 
S

o
ci

al
 W

o
rk

er
/C

A

Appendix 2

P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Nottingham City Council 
 

1 
 

Equality Impact Assessment Form 
 
 

screentip-sectionA 

1. Document Control 
1. Control Details 

  

Title: Mental Health Accommodation and Support Pathways 

Author (assigned to Pentana): Rasool Gore (Claire Labdon- West) 

Director: Catherine Underwood, Corporate Director of People 
Katy Ball, Director of Commissioning and Procurement 

Department: Strategy & Resources 

Service Area: Commissioning and Market Development 

Contact details: rasool.gore@nottinghamcity.gov.uk/claire labdon-west@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 

Strategic Budget EIA: Y/N N  

Exempt from publication  Y/N N 

2. Document Amendment Record 

Version Author Date Approved 

V1 Rasool Gore    

    

    

3. Contributors/Reviewers 

Name Position Date 

   

   

   

 
  

P
age 37

mailto:rasool.gore@nottinghamcity.gov.uk/claire


Nottingham City Council 
 

2 
 

4. Glossary of Terms 

Term  Description  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 
 
screentip-sectionB 

2. Assessment 
1. Brief description of proposal / policy / service being assessed 

 

Proposal:  
To extend the current mental health supported accommodation and Independent Living Support Service (ILSS) contracts 
for six months. This will allow for the procurement of:  

 a new reablement service. The service will support vulnerable adults with mental ill-health for an average period of 
three months after which they will be either discharged from social care or move onto appropriate longer term 
support based on individual need; 

 four separate accommodation based Housing Related Support (HRS) services for vulnerable adults with mental ill-
health and 

 a separate independent support service to support a small (14 per annum) cohort of vulnerable adults with mental 
ill health who are in forensic provision.   

 
Background:   
Nottingham City Council undertook a review of the Mental Health Supported Accommodation Pathway in 2016.  At that 
time, it was decided to extend all current contracts to enable a further review, which has now been undertaken.  The 
review considered the current services within the mental health pathway provision of services.  The current services are:  

 ILSS (supporting on average 156 citizens per year) with an additional forensic independent service support (14 

P
age 38



Nottingham City Council 
 

3 
 

citizens per year). 

 Four separate HRS services (93 units) for vulnerable adults with mental ill health. 
 

These services provide for citizens who have been inpatients in mental health hospital and/or have difficulty maintaining 
independent living due a decline in their mental health.  
 
The review has been overseen by the Mental Health Board, which is led by Adult Social Care.  The Board included the 
following representatives: 
Nottingham City Council specialist mental health social care team representatives 
Nottingham City Council Health and Care Point team representatives 
Nottingham City Council Analysis and Insight team representatives and 
Nottingham City Council Commissioning and Market Development team representatives. 
 
The review highlighted the following: 

 To decommission the independent Living Support Service and replace it with a reablement service.  This will 
ensure an intensive period of support of three months and help to identify citizens that require longer-term support.  
It is envisaged that the service will enable citizens to become independent quicker than currently but also identify  
those that will require longer-term support in a timely manner.  

 To commission the core part of the four HRS services as is currently as it effectively meets the needs of citizens 
effectively.   The cluster part of the services to be reshaped to ensure that move on of citizens to either 
independent living or longer-term support happens in a timely fashion.  This should ensure that citizens are not 
stuck in the cluster part of the services. 

 To procure the forensic independent support service as is currently.  This is a small-bespoke service supporting a 
group of citizens who social workers often struggle to find appropriate support.  

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

screentip-sectionC 

 

P
age 39



Nottingham City Council 
 

4 
 

2. Information used to analyse the effects on equality: 
 

The review considered both qualitative and quantitative data to inform future commissioning of services. The information 
below highlighted equalities issues which are relevant to the commissioning of these services.  
 
The Mental Health Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) 2016 : The JSNA reported the following amongst 
unmet needs and gaps: 

 Citizens find the system of mental health services confusing and difficult to navigate 

 Broader understanding of mental health needs and the relationship with physical health needs to be improved at 
all levels within commissioning and provision 

 Black and minority ethnic (BME) communities and high-risk groups such as LGBT groups, offenders and asylum 
seekers/refugees may have challenges in terms of accessing mental health services 

 Mental health problems are frequently reported amongst individuals who are homeless or at risk of becoming 
homeless.  Work is needed to ensure systems of homelessness prevention and mental health support work 
together to ensure those in need receive adequate treatment, accommodation and support.  

The JSNA also highlighted that: 

 Black men are three times more likely to be represented on a psychiatric ward and up to six times more likely to 
be detained under the Mental Health Act; 

 Lesbian, gay, bisexual or transgender adults have a four fold increased risk of suicide; 
Recommendations for commissioners from the JSNA are that services being commissioned should ensure the following 
emphasis:  

 Services are understood and accessible to all, including groups within the population who currently find services 
difficult to use for cultural reasons or because they believe the service will not meet their needs;  

 Services have and emphasis on supporting recovery and promoting ‘safe’ independence;  

 Services consider each individuals physical health needs as equally important as their mental health needs; 

 Services to raise the profile of outcomes for people with mental health problems as an equality issue by 
consideration of the requirement to make reasonable adjustments to enable people with enduring mental health 
problems to benefit. 

To ensure that above need identified within the JSNA was still relevant the following analysis was undertaken: 
 
Health data provided by the Greater Nottingham Clinical Partnership.  From this information it was identified that 
Nottingham City has  

 An increasing and significantly higher prevalence of citizens with long-term mental health problems 

P
age 40



Nottingham City Council 
 

5 
 

 The data highlights that of those that accessed Nottinghamshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust (NHFT) 
contracted services in 2017/18, 53% were female and 47% were male  

 Over a fifth of those accessing NHFT were aged under 25 years with almost half aged between 25 and 59 and the 
remaining 29% were aged 60 and older  

 The proportion of non-White British, Black and minority ethnic (BME) patients in contact with NHFT is lower than might be 
expected, considering the structure of Nottingham City’s population.  BME patients represent 25% of those in contact with 
NHFT and 35% of Nottingham City’s population.  This issue was picked up through consultation.  The consultation with 
providers and frontline workers indicated that culturally for some BME group’s mental health is seen as a stigma and quite 
often individuals and families will avoid accessing support.  This is then exacerbated by cultural bias, experience of 
discrimination and stigma and challenges in accessing appropriate services, which may lead to underrepresentation in terms 
of accessing appropriate support. 

 
Further learning has been gathered through the work of Opportunity Nottingham which is a big lottery funded scheme currently 
supporting citizens with complex needs. This indicated that a substantial proportion of citizens with mental health needs might also 
present with drug and alcohol mis-use, victims of physical and or sexual abuse.  As part of the Opportunity Nottingham service 
Awaaz has been commissioned to deliver support for BME citizens with mental ill health.  The commission of this bespoke BME 
service has increased the number of BME citizens engaging with the programme. The programme will be monitoring and evaluating 
the success of this programme and will feed into future commissioning intentions.  
 
The following has also been undertaken to ensure a clear understanding of need and service gaps: 

 The consultation findings with citizens of the 2016 review  

 Visits to services and discussion with staff and service users  

 A consultation event for providers and frontline staff 

 National analytical reports 

 Barriers to move on service in relation to the accommodation based support services with providers 

 Case reviews  

 Learning from other local authority’s pathway. 
 
 
 
Key Messages from this part of the service were that: 

 The current commissioned pathway is operating well, offering an effective short-term support system that is value for money.  
However, some citizens seem to move on from one short-term provision to another when in reality they require an earlier 

P
age 41



Nottingham City Council 
 

6 
 

discharge to independent living or they require longer-term support.  

 An reablement provision providing similar types of support as the current independent living support service would help to 
provide an early diagnosis of need and therefore appropriate commissioning of services or discharge depending on individual 
needs.  This should help prevent citizens moving from one temporary provision of support to another.  It is envisaged that this 
service will be able to support a greater number of citizens (566) compared to the current ILSS service which supports on 
average 156.  The rationale behind this is that citizens will receive intensive support for a three-month period but then move 
on.  The current ILSS service provides an average of ten months of support. As this a new service it is envisaged that it will 
work closely with the specialist mental health teams, commissioners and contract officers in order to ensure that issues are 
picked up and mitigated quickly. In the first year of the service, learning will be gathered and any learning may be 
implemented via contract variation. The focus will be ensuring that needs are met effectively.  

 The core part of the supported accommodation based services are working well and requires no change.  However, some 
cluster provision is not as effective at moving citizens on to longer-term support or independent living.  As part of the service, 
specification clear targets will be set against the cluster provision to ensure citizens are not in the accommodation longer than 
they should be. 

 The ILSS forensic support service requires no change as it effectively supports the work of the social work team in supporting 
this small cohort of citizens with specialist need.  

 The providers as part of the care plan with individuals ensure that physical health needs as well as mental ill health are picked 
up in individual care plans 

 There is now stronger routes of referral from the short-term support services into longer-term support services where this 
need is identified for individuals.  This has been a result of closer working relationships between the social work teams and 
the providers. 

 There is a need to link up other commissioned pathways to ensure expertise is available as and when needed for individuals.  
For example, the homeless support pathway.  A worker has been employed for a twelve-month period as a link worker to 
identify and support individuals who are in temporary homelessness provision but require specialist mental health support 
interventions.   

 In relation to the short-term supported accommodation based services, very few women have accessed the services despite it 
being mixed provision.  The reasons for this is either the service feels they cannot accommodate them safely or the women 
do  not feel safe usually due to physical or sexual assault they may have experienced. This therefore means the options for 
women are either long-term provision of support (CSE/residential) or short term support Aidan House which is the female 
complex needs service which struggles to support them appropriately due to their mental ill-health. Senior managers have 
picked this up and further consideration will be given to understand how this can be developed and funded in the future.  

 The decommissioning of the current ILSS service will be managed effectively with social workers working with the current 
provider of the service to move citizens to the appropriate part of the mental health support pathway. Citizens will be fully 

P
age 42



Nottingham City Council 
 

7 
 

engaged as part of this process.  
 
 
 

 

3. Impacts and Actions: 
 

screentip-sectionD 
Could particularly benefit 

X 
May adversely impact 

X 

People from different ethnic groups.   

Men   

Women   

Trans   

Disabled people or carers.   

Pregnancy/ Maternity   

People of different faiths/ beliefs and those with none.   

Lesbian, gay or bisexual people.   

Older   

Younger   

Other (e.g. marriage/ civil partnership, looked after 
children, cohesion/ good relations, vulnerable children/ 
adults). 
 
These services will support citizens who have 
substantial mental ill health as defined under the 
Care Act 2014.  These citizens may also fall under 
the above-protected groups.  

  

P
age 43



Nottingham City Council 
 

8 
 

Please underline the group(s) /issue more 
adversely affected or which benefits. 

 

screentip-sectionE   
How different groups 
could be affected 
(Summary of impacts) 

screentip-sectionF   
Details of actions to reduce  
negative or increase positive impact  
(or why action isn’t possible) 

 
Provide details for impacts / benefits on people in different 
protected groups. 
 
Note: the level of detail should be proportionate to the 
potential impact of the proposal / policy / service. Continue 
on separate sheet if needed (click and type to delete this 
note) 
 
Benefits of proposal – Citizens 

1. Considering the unmet needs in the JSNA future 
specifications will stipulate that providers need to 
evidence that they will be able to accommodate the 
needs of different cultures to ensure services are 
accessible by all.  
 

2. Women – Considering a lack of short-term 
accommodation, based provision for women the 
service specifications will stipulate that providers 
need to evidence how they will be able to 
accommodate the needs of women effectively.  
 
 

 
1 Actions will need to be uploaded on Pentana. 
 
 
Continue on separate sheet if needed (click and type to delete 
this note) 
 
 
 
Actions: 

1. Final specifications and monitoring requirements 
amended to address issues related to challenges for 
groups such as BME, women, lesbian, gay or bi-sexual 
people accessing mental ill health support services.  
Responsible: commissioning and contracts team. 

 
2. Final specifications and monitoring requirements to 

address issues relating to challenges faced by women 
accessing mental ill health support services.  Further 
work will be undertaken to understand how a female only 
short-term accommodation based service could be 
funded. Responsible: commissioning and contracts 
team.  

P
age 44



Nottingham City Council 
 

9 
 

 
3. Young People – The health data indicates that 

younger people are presenting with substantial 
mental ill health.  The service specifications will 
stipulate that providers evidence how they will meet 
the needs of younger service users effectively.  

 
3. Final specifications and monitoring requirements to 

address issues relating to challenges faced by young 
people accessing mental ill health support services.  
Responsible: commissioning and contracts team.  
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

4. Outcome(s) of equality impact assessment:  
 

 No major change needed  Adjust the policy/proposal 
 Adverse impact but continue  Stop and remove the policy/proposal 

 

5. Arrangements for future monitoring of equality impact of this proposal / policy / service: 
 

Quarterly reporting submissions will need to be provided by providers of services to the contracts team. 
These will be reviewed together with commissioning and specialist mental health operational 
practit ioners.   
Regular monthly meetings with providers, commissioners and mental health operational practit ioners to 
review individual cases as appropriate.  
 

 

6. Approved by (manager signature) and Date sent to equality team for publishing: 
 

Approving Manager: 
The assessment must be approved by the manager 

responsible for the service/proposal. Include a contact 

Date sent for scrutiny:10 th  December 2019 
Send document or Link to: 
equalityanddiversityteam@nottinghamcity.gov.uk   

P
age 45

mailto:equalityanddiversityteam@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


Nottingham City Council 
 

10 
 

tel & email to allow citizen/stakeholder feedback on 

proposals. 

SRO Approval: Oliver Bolam 
Oliver.bolam@nottinghamcity.gov.uk  

Date of final approval:17 th December 2019 

 

Before you send your EIA to the Equality and Community Relations Team for scrutiny, have you: 

 

1. Read the guidance and good practice EIA’s  
         http://intranet.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/media/1924/simple-guide-to-eia.doc  
2. Clearly summarised your proposal/ policy/ service to be assessed. 
3. Hyperlinked to the appropriate documents. 
4. Written in clear user-friendly language, free from all jargon (spelling out acronyms). 
5. Included appropriate data. 
6. Consulted the relevant groups or citizens or stated clearly, when this is going to happen. 
7. Clearly cross-referenced your impacts with SMART actions. 

 

 

P
age 46

http://intranet.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/media/1924/simple-guide-to-eia.doc


COMMISSIONING AND PROCUREMENT SUB-COMMITTEE – 14th January 
2020 

   

Subject: Utilities Contract – 2020 to 2024 
 

Corporate 
Director(s)/ 
Director(s): 

Candida Brudenell, Corporate Director Strategy & Resources 
 

Portfolio Holder(s): Councillor Sally Longford, Portfolio Holder for Energy, Environment and 
Democratic Services 

Report author and 
contact details: 

Wayne Bexton, Head of Energy Services, 0115 8764943 

Key Decision               Yes        No Subject to call-in      Yes           No 
Councillor Anne Peach was consulted on the 
9th December and agreed that the proposed 
decision is reasonable in all circumstances and 
should be treated as a matter of urgency 
because due to EU procurement rules the 
tender has to be posted on or before the 16th 
January to enable the Council to have lead in 
time to have a new contract in place from the 
1st April 2020. 
 

Reasons:  Expenditure  Income  Savings of £1,000,000 or 
more taking account of the overall impact of the decision 

 Revenue   Capital  

Significant impact on communities living or working in two or more 
wards in the City  

 Yes      No  

Total value of the decision: £20m over 4 years 

Wards affected: All Date of consultation with Portfolio 
Holder(s): 2nd December 2019 

Relevant Council Plan Key Theme:   

Nottingham People  

Living in Nottingham  

Growing Nottingham  

Respect for Nottingham  

Serving Nottingham Better  

Summary of issues (including benefits to citizens/service users):  
Our current contract for the supply of gas and electricity are expiring in the financial year 
2020/21. (gas expires 31st March 2020, electricity 30th September 2020)       
 
 
 
 
 

Exempt information: Appendix 1 – Options Appraisal for the procurement of Utilities 
Contract 2020 to 2024 
State ‘None’ or complete the following. 

An appendix to the report is exempt from publication under paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A to the 

Local Government Act 1972 because it contains information relating to the financial or business 

affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information and, having 

regard to all the circumstances, the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 

public interest in disclosing the information. It is not in the public interest to disclose the 

information because it could prejudice commercial negotiations resulting in a decrease in value 

Page 47

Agenda Item 8



for money of public funds.” 

Recommendation(s):  

1 To approve the procurement of supply of gas and electricity for Nottingham City 
Council via a direct tender.  

      

2   To delegate authority to the Corporate Director of Commercial and Operations to award 
the contract.  

3    To approve the spend associated with this supply for 4 years. 

 
 
1 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
1.1 Our current contract for the supply of gas and electricity are expiring in the 

financial year 2020/21. (gas expires 31st March 2020 and electricity 30th 
September 2020). 

 
1.2 NCC have an opportunity to review the best route of procurement to deliver a 

value for money contract type for Nottingham City Council which will 
contribute towards the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) and the budget 
gaps. 

 
1.3 This report contains a detailed options appraisal document for the most cost 

effective route for the council to take for its supply of energy for the next four 
years. 

 
2 BACKGROUND (INCLUDING OUTCOMES OF CONSULTATION) 
 
2.1 Our current contract for the supply of gas and electricity was procured via an open 

tender route during 2016 as two separate procurement exercises each for gas and 
electricity. Gas commenced April 2016 and Electricity followed in October 2016 on 
both a three-year plus one contract, the clause to extend into a fourth year was 
exercised during 2019.  

 
2.2 The contract was a framework approach with a number of other public sector 

organisations listed as potential “call in” customers.  
 
2.3 The current contract also includes Nottingham City Homes commercial supply 

accounts, and a number of directly billed accounts such as local authority 
maintained schools, academy schools, community centres, and the Nottingham 
Playhouse. These organisations have been consulted with, and wish to remain 
within this procurement exercise. 

 
2.4 The current contract is made up of 

 Gas supplies 

 Electricity supplies 
o Half hourly meters 
o Non half hourly meters 
o Street Lighting 

 
3 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED IN MAKING RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 Not to go to market for gas and electricity supply. This would had seen Nottingham 

City Council and its partners pay out of contract rates, which would had seen a 
significant rise in the costs for gas and electricity.  

Page 48



3.2 To procure via a current framework such and ESPO or Crown Commercial 
Services. This option provides no opportunity for the contribution via a levy on this 
contract to the Nottingham Jobs Fund 

 
3.3 In light of the current financial climate for NCC it is key that the route that will 

deliver value for money is undertaken. 
 
4 FINANCE COLLEAGUE COMMENTS (INCLUDING IMPLICATIONS AND 

VALUE FOR MONEY/VAT) 
 
4.1 The NCC budget for 2020/21 for gas and electricity based on the elements referred 

to in point 2.4 is currently £6.1m however, based on costs estimated in 2019/20 
this potentially could overspend by £0.393m. 

 
4.2 The procurement process for the supply of gas and electricity for NCC needs to a 

minimum deliver within budget or provide an underspend which can then be used 
to offset the budget gaps for 2020/21+ and prevent other service reductions. 

 
4.3 The outcome of the tender process will need to incorporate financial 

recommendations, to be provided by Head of Commercial Finance which support 
recommendation 2 and ensure the decision delivers on value for money 
requirements in the procurement of goods and services. 

 
Provided by Ceri Walters, Head of Commercial Finance, Finance. 

 
5 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT COLLEAGUE COMMENTS (INLUDING RISK 

MANAGEMENT ISSUES, AND INCLUDING LEGAL, CRIME AND DISORDER 
ACT AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS) 

 
5.1 The Procurement Team will assist with the tendering exercise to ensure that a fully 

compliant, value for money contract is entered into. 
 Advice provided by Paul Ritchie, Procurement Manager, 11/12/2019. 
 
5.2 This report seeks authority to go out to tender. It does not raise any significant 

legal issues if the tender is conducted in accordance with the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015 and the City Council’s Contract Procedure Rules. Advice 
Provided by Andrew James, Team Leader Commercial, Employment, and 
Education, Legal Services 

 
 
6 STRATEGIC ASSETS & PROPERTY COLLEAGUE COMMENTS (FOR 

DECISIONS RELATING TO ALL PROPERTY ASSETS AND ASSOCIATED 
INFRASTRUCTURE (STRATEGIC REGENERATION COMMITTEE REPORTS 
ONLY) 

 
6.1 Not required 
 
7 SOCIAL VALUE CONSIDERATIONS 

 
7.1 None 
 
8 REGARD TO THE NHS CONSTITUTION 
 
8.1 None 
 

Page 49



9 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT (EIA) 
 
9.1 Has the equality impact of the proposals in this report been assessed? 
 
 No         
 An EIA is not required because there are no equality impacts from the 

decision to procure a new supply of electricity and gas. 
 
 Yes         
  

 
10 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS RELIED UPON IN WRITING THIS REPORT 

(NOT INCLUDING PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS OR CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT 
INFORMATION) 

 
10.1 None 
 
11 PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS REFERRED TO IN THIS REPORT 
 
11.1 None 
 

Page 50



Document is Restricted

Page 51

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Funding for Nottingham Schools Trust
	6 Building Services, Mechanical And Electrical Team Procurement Requirements – 2020-24
	7 Mental Health Accommodation and Support Pathways
	Enc. 1 for Mental Health Accommodation and Support Pathways
	Enc. 2 for Mental Health Accommodation and Support Pathways
	Recommended Option.vsd
	Page-1


	Enc. 3 for Mental Health Accommodation and Support Pathways

	8 Procurement of Utilities Contract 2020 to 2024
	10 Exempt appendix - Procurement of Utilities Contract 2020-2024

